
 1 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, MARCH 3, 2011 
                     
                 
PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large 
 Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District 
 Jay P. Donahue, Dranesville District 
 Earl L. Flanagan, Mount Vernon District 
 Janet R. Hall, Mason District 
 James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 
 John L. Litzenberger, Sully District 

James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 
 Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
 Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large 
 
ABSENT: Suzanne F. Harsel, Braddock District 

Kenneth A. Lawrence, Providence District 
  
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:20 p.m. by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr. in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS 
 
Chairman Murphy announced that the Planning Commission’s Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) Committee would meet on Wednesday, March 16, 2011 at 7:30 p.m., in the Board 
Conference Room of the Government Center, at which time he would constitute the committee 
and nominate Commissioner Timothy J. Sargeant as Chairman. He added that the following 
Commissioners were members: 
 

•  Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District 
•  James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 
•  Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
•  Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large 

 
// 
 
FSA-D06-2-2 – AT&T MOBILITY, 977 Balls Hill Road  
FSA-B97-18-2 – AT&T MOBILITY, 7920 Woodruff Court 
 
Chairman Murphy MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION CONCUR WITH THE 
FOLLOWING CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS BY AT&T MOBILITY: FSA-D06-2-2, 977 
BALLS HILL ROAD; AND FSA-B97-18-2, 7920 WOODRUFF COURT.  



 2 

COMMISSION MATTERS                                                                                      March 3, 2011 
 
 
Without objection, the motion carried unanimously with Commissioners Harsel and Lawrence 
absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
WORKSHOP – A public workshop will be held, in accordance with 
Sect. 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia, on the Advertised CIP, Fiscal 
Years 2012-2016 (with future Fiscal Years to 2021), with briefings 
from various County agencies. COUNTYWIDE.   

 
The Planning Commission held a workshop on the CIP, where presentations were made by 
representatives of the following agencies:  
 
1. Fairfax County Public Schools (FCPS) 
           – Dean Tistadt, Chief Operating Officer, Facilities and Transportation Services 
 
(A copy of Mr. Tistadt's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Sargeant about how the economy might have 
affected the accrued savings on construction projects, Mr. Tistadt said that FCPS saved $31 
million on jobs that were already completed and were continuing to accrue $60 million for 
projects that have not been approved. Responding to another question about the renovation to 
West Springfield High School, Mr. Tistadt stated that this school along with other schools in a 
similar situation were behind and had spent $3 or $4 million doing interim repairs. In response to 
another question, Mr. Tistadt said he did not have an estimate on how much money the new 
construction processes would save in terms of energy use, but would perform an assessment in 
the future. 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Tistadt said the construction of a 
third middle school in the Mount Vernon District should result in the disappearance of temporary 
classrooms. He affirmed that a renovation of Sandburg Middle School would address FCPS 
capacity needs. He noted that FCPS planned to complete the Sandburg Middle School 
renovations by 2015. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Litzenberger, Mr. Tistadt said that the $16 million 
allocated for athletic infrastructure was in addition to money donated by booster clubs. 
 
2. Fairfax County Fire and Rescue Department (FCFRD) 
           – John Burke, Assistant Chief, Business Services Bureau 
 
(A copy of Mr. Burke's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
 
 



 3 

CIP WORKSHOP                                                                                          March 3, 2011 
 
 
Responding to a comment from Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Burke agreed that the lessons 
learned in the Herndon Fire Station project would help the construction process for the fire 
station that would be built in Tysons Corner because both had constrained locations. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Hart, Mr. Burke confirmed that the proposed 
projects were unfunded except for feasibility studies on the Herndon Fire Station and the 
Bailey’s Crossroads Fire Station. Martha Reed, Department of Management and Budget, added 
that Fairfax County had proposed a bond referendum for fall 2012, which would include funding 
for the proposed fire stations mentioned by Mr. Burke. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Hall, Mr. Burke stated that although it was a 
challenge to redesign the sites with monopoles present, it was feasible. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Donahue, Mr. Burke said that the Great Falls 
Volunteer Fire Station should be completed in January 2012. He affirmed that he was confident 
that the FCFRD would be able to work within the constraints of the Herndon site, which would 
be the model for the Tysons project. Mr. Burke stated that 16 to 18 parking spaces would be 
provided for the fire station.  
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Mr. Burke confirmed that the average 
cost for new fire stations was approximately $10.4 to $10.5 million. He said the Lorton 
Volunteer Fire Station was still a viable station despite a decline in membership. In response to a 
follow-up question, Ms. Reed stated there was a reference to the Massey Building replacement in 
the future bond referendum.  
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Burke said there was a dividing line 
where the Lorton Fire Station took over from the Crosspointe Fire Station, but he could not 
depict it geographically. He noted that it was possible to earmark the money for improvements to 
the Lorton Volunteer Fire Station. Mr. Burke said FCFRD had not expressed concern about staff 
locating telecommunications facilities at fire station sites. 
 
3. Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
           – Michael R. Lake, Coordination and Funding Division 
 
(A copy of Mr. Lake's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
Commissioner de la Fe commended FCDOT staff for their excellent work in informing the 
public that the Reston East Park-and-Ride Lot would be closed during the Dulles Metrorail 
Project. Commissioner Alcorn agreed with Commissioner de la Fe’s statement. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Lake said the $20 million mentioned 
on page 167 of the CIP document for a project to widen Lorton Road referred to a bond and the 
total project cost would be $40 million. He noted that additional money would come from all 
sources including the Commercial and Industrial Tax (C&I) bonds, and Federal and state funds. 
Mr. Lake stated that the $55 million budget for improvements to Richmond Highway would  



 4 

CIP WORKSHOP                                                                                          March 3, 2011 
 
 
continue through 2016 with sidewalk improvements and transit centers being the costly parts of 
the project. He added that the projects would be rearranged as needed. 
 
Responding to a question from Chairman Murphy, Mr. Lake said the Washington Metropolitan 
Area Transit Authority (WMATA) was being transitioned to the Fairfax County Connector 
service, but WMATA would remain a part of the overall bus service. 
 
4.  Fairfax County Park Authority (FCPA) 
           – David R. Bowden, Director, Planning and Development Division 
 
(A copy of Mr. Bowden's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Mr. Bowden said the funding for athletic 
fields would continue to be a small portion of the FCPA budget. He stated that the FCPA 
prioritized the placement of athletic fields based on the availability of the land. Mr. Bowden 
noted that the FCPA had completed a marketing study and a concept design, but this project did 
not have the necessary funding. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan expressed support for the proposed improvements to the George 
Washington Recreation Center. In response to a question, Mr. Bowden said the recent 
renovations were to improve access to the pool and enhance the interior of the building. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Donahue, Mr. Bowden stated that the FCPA was 
considering field options in Tysons Corner, but had not established a project as of yet. 
 
Responding to a comment from Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Bowden affirmed that there was a 
wetlands area as part of the proffer for Arrowbrook Park at no cost to the FCPA. 
 
In response to questions from Chairman Murphy, Mr. Bowden said the FCPA would continue to 
rely on user fees to pay for park projects and that income from monopole projects would be used 
as a last resort. He stated that the FCPA Board had to approve a recommendation from staff to 
change this policy. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan commented on how the FCPA had a different policy for 
telecommunications facilities than it did for other major utilities. 
 
5. Fairfax County Public Libraries (FCPL) 
           – Jane Goodwin, Deputy Director, Library Foundation 
 
(A copy of Ms. Goodwin's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner de la Fe, Ms. Goodwin stated that feasibility and 
conceptual design studies for the Reston Regional Library had not yet been approved. 
Commissioner Hall commented that there was a significant desire in Reston for the expansion 
and renovation of the library. 



 5 

CIP WORKSHOP                                                                                          March 3, 2011 
 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Litzenberger, Ms. Goodwin said the influx of 
Loudon County residents who visited the Chantilly and Centreville libraries when they computed 
the square-footage of the buildings had not been taken into account. She stated that the FCPL did 
not have a fee differential for residents outside of Fairfax County. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Goodwin stated that the FCPL 
would perform feasibility studies for the Reston, Pohick, and John Marshall Regional Libraries 
in anticipation of a bond referendum in 2012. 
 
6. Fairfax County Police Department (FCPD) 
           – Major Erin F. Schaible, Commander, Resource Management Bureau, Police HQ 
 
(A copy of Ms. Schaible's presentation is in the date file.) 
 
In response to questions from Chairman Murphy, Ms. Schaible said the construction of new 
animal shelters were low on the FCPD list of priorities. She clarified that the Logistics 
Warehouse/Vehicle Storage Facility would house police equipment to ensure its safety. Ms. 
Schaible said the FCPD’s earlier plan for public safety facilities on West Ox Road had not been 
approved. She clarified that the difference between urban and non-urban substations was the size 
and number of personnel assigned to it. 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Hall, Ms. Schaible said that vehicles were seized 
by Fairfax County and not the U.S. Marshall Service. She stated that the biggest issue in using 
contractors to deal with seized vehicles was cost. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Litzenberger, Ms. Schaible said that the Fair Oaks 
Police Station was in the construction phase and on schedule to open in August 2012. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Hart, Ms. Schaible said the B1 site for the new 
Public Safety Headquarters was located on the softball field of the Government Center Campus. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Schaible said it was standard to 
have a police station along with a government center throughout the County, but there were cases 
where some areas did not have this setup. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Alcorn, Ms. Schaible said she did not know if the 
proposed South County Police Station would be in conjunction with a government center. 
 
Chairman Murphy praised the FCPD for their outstanding work as the County population and 
subsequent demands on the Police have grown. 
 
7. Fairfax – Falls Church Community Services Board (FCCSB) 
           – Jeannette Cummins-Eisenhour, Residential and Facility Development Manager 
 
(A copy of Ms. Eisenhour's presentation is in the date file.) 



 6 

CIP WORKSHOP                                                                                          March 3, 2011 
 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Hall, Ms. Eisenhour said the FCCSB had 
approximately five or six County-owned facilities.  
 
Responding to a question from Chairman Murphy, Ms. Eisenhour said people have approached 
the FCCSB about using their house as a group home; consequently, the FCCSB were considering 
procedures for handling such requests. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Eisenhour said that the difference 
between a universal design and a barrier-free house was that universal design did not have a 
standard code while barrier-free referred to standards found in the Building Code. 
 
8.  Fairfax County Department of Housing and Community Development (FCDHCD) 
           – John Payne, Deputy Director, Real Estate and Development 
 
(An outline of Mr. Payne’s materials is on pages 71-77 of the document.) 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Payne said that the difficulty in 
constructing new housing units to keep up with projected demand was land cost. He said the 
FCDHCD had looked for opportunities to place housing units near employment centers, but this 
was difficult due to added cost. Mr. Payne stated that educating people on the issues of 
affordable housing would best allow the FCDHCD to plan for future projects. 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Litzenberger, Mr. Payne clarified that there was a 
67 percent cut in block grant funding. He stated that there would be a significant delay in the 
housing projects at West Ox Road and Route 50 because those projects planned to use block 
grant funding.  
 
// 
 
There being no more presenters, Chairman Murphy called for concluding staff remarks from 
David Jillson, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Zoning, who declined. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy announced that the Planning Commission would hold a public hearing on the 
CIP on March 18, 2010. 
 
// 
 
The workshop was adjourned at 11:10 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman 
Suzanne F. Harsel, Secretary 
 
 
 



 7 

CLOSING                                                                                                           March 3, 2011 
 
 
Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

 
 
Meeting taken by: Jeanette Nord 
 
Minutes by:  Jacob L. Caporaletti 
 
Approved on:  April 18, 2012  
 
 

           
Kara A. DeArrastia, Clerk to the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission  


